
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request (360) 893-2219                                                  
P a g e  1 | 2 

 
 

 
Councilmembers 
Position No. 
1. Tod Gunther 
2. Barbara Ford 
3. William Birkes 
4. Dave Harman 
5. Sam Colorossi 
6. Josh Penner, Deputy Mayor 
7. Scott Drennen 

 

 
 

ORTING CITY COUNCIL  
Special Business Meeting Agenda 

Orting Public Safety Building 
401 Washington Ave. SE, Orting, WA 

 
November 18, 2015 

7 p.m. 
 

Audience members are welcome to speak on any topic on the agenda after Councilmembers have finished their discussion. 
 

Mayor Joachim Pestinger 
 

7:00 P.M. - CALL MEETING TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, ROLL CALL 
 
REQUEST FOR ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

• Minutes of October 28, 2015 
• Payroll and Claims Warrants 
• Treasurer’s Report 

 Motion:  Move to approve Consent Agenda as prepared. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are 
encouraged to do so at this time.  When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your 
name and address.  Please limit your comments to 3 minutes.  Thank you for attending. 

  
COMMISSION REPORTS: 

• Parks Commission 
• Planning Commission 

 
COMMITTEE AND COUNCIL STANDING REPORTS: 
  Council Standing Committees and other Reports 

• Public Works – CM Drennen/CM Birkes 
• Finance & Cemetery – CM Colorossi/CM Harman 
• Public Safety – DM Penner/CM Ford 
• Mayor Report – Mayor Pestinger 
• Miscellaneous activity reports, i.e. PSRC, special meetings, etc. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

• AB15-10 – Proposed Ordinance Assuming Orting TBD ● CM Drennen 
 Motion:  Motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2015-972, relating to Transportation; assuming 
 the Orting Transportation Benefit District; repealing Chapter 2-7 of the Orting Municipal 
 Code. 

• AB15-11 – 2016 Proposed Budget ● CM Colorossi 
o Present Preliminary Budget  
 

• AB15-12 – 2016 Revenue Sources ● City Treasurer Scott Larson 



Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request (360) 893-2219                                                  
P a g e  2 | 2 

 
 

o Present 2016 Revenue Sources PowerPoint Slides 
 

• AB15-13 – (First Read) – Proposed Resolution No. 2015-13, 2016 Property Tax 
Levy ● City Administrator Bethune 

o First Reading of Resolution for the 2016 Property Tax Levy 
 

• AB15-14 –  (First Read)  - 2016 Utility Rate Changes – Proposed Ordinance No. 
2015-973 ● CM Drennen and Parametrix Engineer Hungerford 

o First Reading of Ordinance for recommended Rate Changes 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 

 
• Emergency Evacuation Bridge System ● CM Drennen 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 
• AB15-15 - Deputy Mayor for 2016 ● DM Penner                        

 Deputy Mayor will solicit two Councilmembers to recommend a candidate for Deputy Mayor    
 for the year 2016. 

 
• AB15-16 – AWC Legislative Goals for 2016 / Council Legislative Priorities 2016  

● CM Ford  
    Motion:  Motion to accept the Council Legislative Priorities for 2016 as prepared. 
 

• AB15-17 – Resolution No. 2015-14, fixing cemetery fees and charges; repealing 
Resolution No. 2011-4 ● CM Colorossi                                                               
 Motion:  Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2015-14, fixing Cemetery fees and charges 
 and repealing Resolution No. 2011-4. 

 
• AB15-18 – Wetland Mitigation Plan Revisions - Calistoga Setback Levee           

● CM Drennen and Parametrix Engineer Hungerford                                                       
 Motion:  Motion to approve the Scope of Work from Parametrix for preparation of 
 scope and budget for Engineering Services, coordination, correspondence, review and 
 scheduling of Phase 2001-Calistoga Setback Levee Wetland Mitigation Plan revisions. 
 

• AB15-19– Fleet Maintenance Services – Police & Public Works ● CM Drennen                                         
 Motion:  Motion to approve seeking “Request for Proposals” (RFPs) regarding Fleet 
 Maintenance services for the Police and Public Works Departments. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
      Motion:  Move to Adjourn. 
 

Upcoming Meetings: 
Next Regular Meeting:  November 25, 2015 (PSB) 



1 | P a g e - C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  O c t o b e r  2 8 ,  2 0 1 5  
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Joachim Pestinger called the meeting to order with the flag salute at 7:00 pm in the 
Orting Public Safety Building.  Roll call found in attendance Deputy Mayor Josh Penner, 
Councilmembers Sam Colorossi, Scott Drennen, William Birkes, Barbara Ford, Tod Gunther 
and Dave Harman. 
 
ATTENDANCE: 
 
City Employees Mark Bethune, City Administrator 

Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
Scott Larson, City Treasurer 
Bill Drake, Police Chief 

  
Professional 
Representatives 

Jay Long, Attorney – Kenyon Disend 
JC Hungerford, Engineer – Parametrix 

  
Visitors (signed in) Susan Rigley  
  

REQUEST FOR ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA: 
 
 Councilmember Colorossi asked to add Finance and Cemetery 

Report under Committee and Standing Reports. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
 Councilmember Colorossi moved to approve the Consent Agenda as 

prepared.  Second by Councilmember Ford.  Motion carried (7-0). 
 

COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS: 
 
 Susan Rigley, PC Library –updated Council on the events the 

library will have for the month of November. Thanked the City for 
fixing up the surroundings around the library. 

 
COMMITTEE AND STANDING REPORTS:  (7:06) 
 
Transportation Councilmember Ford reported discussions took place regarding the 

Transportation Benefit District (TBD) and the detailed budget report, 
along with the overlay project; she discussed the pedestrian 
walkway around town; long term plan for the overall system for 
scheduling repairs; Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP); 
VanScoyoc lighting project and the 2016 Transportation Master 
Plan. (Committee report attached - please note, these are not the official minutes 
approved by the Committee) 

  

ORTING CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
Public Safety Building, 401 Washington Ave. SE 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 



 
 

2 | P a g e - C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  O c t o b e r  2 8 ,  2 0 1 5  
 

Technology & Land 
Use 

Councilmember Gunther reported the police survey will be going 
out in the November utility billing; he noted the Committee is putting 
the ADR reader board on hold due to pricing; the QR code project 
for the Trail will offer people access to points of interests, stores, 
first aid, etc. and will be done by an Eagle Scout as soon as the 
Scout presents the project to his Troop, Councilmember Harman 
will bring it forward to Council for approval. 
 
Deputy Mayor Penner discussed the markers that were “torched” 
down on the trail that are fading and this will be a good project. 

  
 
 

Councilmember Colorossi presented Council with a draft cemetery 
fee resolution for Council to review. 

 
OLD BUSINESS:  (7:12) 
 
Orting Emergency 
Evacuation Bridge 
System 

Councilmember Drennen reported work being done with Parametrix 
regarding the location of the bridge; discussed grant funding and 
educational options for the citizens.  

  
NEW BUSINESS:  (7:15)  
 
AB15-06 – Police Car 
Purchase 

Deputy Mayor Penner reported the police department being down a 
vehicle; budgeted item to be purchased; discussed why they chose 
the vehicle SUV vs. sedan. 
 
Councilmember Colorossi asked when delivery will take place and 
hoping it was before Period 13. 
 
Chief stated it will be before the end of the year and should be 
before Period 13.  
 
Councilmember Ford moved to approve the purchase of a 2016 Ford 
Police Inceptor Utility/SUV AWD vehicle for the amount of $30,752.87 
and approve the additional $12,300 to fully equip the vehicle in 2016.  
Second by Councilmember Harman.  Motion carried (7-0). 

  
AB15-07 – Cover 
Letter re: PSB Lease 

Councilmember Colorossi reported Attorney Joe Quinn is present 
tonight to give a brief overview. Attorney Quinn explained his role in 
the process of the lease proposal.  
 
Councilmember Colorossi moved to approve the first renewal and 
amendment to lease agreement for the Public Safety Building 
between the City of Orting and Orting Valley Fire and Rescue.  
Second by Councilmember Drennen.  Motion carried (7-0). 
 
Deputy Mayor Penner read the cover letter. 
 
Councilmember Colorossi moved to approve the Deputy Mayor to 
sign the cover letter.  Second by Councilmember Ford.  Motion 
carried (7-0). 



 
 

3 | P a g e - C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s  o f  O c t o b e r  2 8 ,  2 0 1 5  
 

AB15-08 – Resolution 
No. 2015-12 ● Intent to 
assume the 
Transportation Benefit 
District and set a Public 
Hearing 

CA Bethune deferred to Attorney Long- reported on the Resolution 
and how law has changed that the City can assume the 
Transportation Benefit District (TBD). He noted there is a process 
that needs to be followed, the first step is to announce the intent of 
assuming the TBD and set a public hearing, next step would be an 
ordinance to remove and replace the current code. 
 
City Attorney Bethune stated when adopted, Council will be 
assuming the TBD beginning January 1, 2016.  
 
Councilmember Drennen moved to adopt Resolution No. 2015-12, 
declaring the City’s intention to assume the Orting Transportation 
Benefit District and setting a public hearing for November 18, 2015.  
Second by Councilmember Ford.  Motion carried (7-0). 

  
AB15-09 – VanScoyoc 
Lighting Curb 

Councilmember Drennen reported this project is entering its final 
stages and this will complete the project.  
 
Councilmember Drennen moved to approve K-A General 
Construction as low bidder for the VanScoyoc Lighting curb project. 
Second by Councilmember Ford.  Motion carried (7-0). 

  
ADJOURN: 
 Councilmember Ford moved to adjourn. Second by Deputy Mayor 

Penner.  Motion carried (7-0). 
ATTEST:
  
 
 
               ____________________________                          ____________________________ 
                             Joachim Pestinger, Mayor                                            Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 



















































City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

AB15-10 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING - Ordinance 
No. 2015-972, relating to Transportation; 
Assuming the Orting Transportation 
Benefit District; Repealing Chapter 2-7 of 
the Orting Municipal Code  

Agenda Item #:   AB15-10  
For Agenda of:   11/18/15  
Department:  TBD  
Date Submitted: 11/5/15  

 
Orting Staff & Professional 

Representatives 
 

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long X Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: enter a timeline if applicable 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Ordinance No. 2015-972; Resolution No. 2015-12 and Notice to TNT 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:   
On July 1, 2015 the State Legislature passed Senate Bill 5987 amending Chapter 36.73 RCW and other 
chapters and adding a new RCW Chapter 36.160, and authorizing cities to assume the rights, powers, 
immunities, functions, and obligations of Transportation Benefit District (TBD) with the same 
boundaries as the establishing city.  
On October 28, 2015, the City Council passed Resolution No. 2015-12 indicating its intention to 
conduct a public hearing concerning the assumption of the rights, powers, immunities, functions, and 
obligations of the TBD. Per RCW 36.160.020 (1) Resolution No. 2015-12 was published in the News 
Tribune on November 6 and November 13.  The Ordinance proposed is relating to Transportation; 
assuming the Orting Transportation Benefit District; repealing Chapter 2-7 of the Orting Municipal 
Code. 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  Council discussed at their 10/2/15 Council 
meeting.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to adopt Ordinance No. 2015-972, 
relating to Transportation; assuming the Orting Transportation 
Benefit District effective 1/1/16; repealing Chapter 2-7 of the Orting 
Municipal Code. 

 



 - 1 - 

CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-972 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, RELATING TO TRANSPORTATION; 
ASSUMING THE ORTING TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT 
DISTRICT; REPEALING CHAPTER 2-7 OF THE ORTING 
MUNICIPAL CODE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Orting has the responsibility for the improvement, maintenance, 
protection, and operation of public streets and ways within the corporate limits of the City; and 

 WHEREAS, on November 30, 2011, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 920 
establishing a city-wide transportation benefit district pursuant to Chapter 36.73 RCW for the 
improvement, preservation, and maintenance of the City’s transportation infrastructure, to 
protect the City’s long-term investments in that infrastructure, to reduce the risk of transportation 
facility failure, to improve safety, to continue optimal performance of the infrastructure over 
time and to avoid more expensive infrastructure replacements in the future (“Orting 
Transportation Benefit District” or “the TBD”); and 

 WHEREAS, on July 1, 2015, the State Legislature passed Second Engrossed Substitute 
Senate Bill 5987, amending Chapter 36.73 RCW and other chapters, adding new Chapter 36.160 
RCW, and authorizing cities to assume the rights, powers, immunities, functions, and obligations 
of transportation benefit districts with the same boundaries as the establishing city; and 

 WHEREAS, on October 28, 2015, the City Council passed Resolution No. 2015-12 
indicating its intention to conduct a public hearing concerning the assumption of the rights, 
powers, immunities, functions, and obligations of the TBD; and  

 WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2015-12 was published in the News Tribune, a newspaper 
of daily general circulation printed or published in the City, on November 6, 2015 and November 
13, 2015; and  

 WHEREAS, on November 18, 2015, a public hearing was held by the City Council to 
consider the proposed assumption of the rights, powers, immunities, functions, and obligations of 
the TBD; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the public interest and welfare will be 
satisfied by the City assuming the rights, powers, immunities, function, and obligations of the 
TBD and hereby declares its intent to do the same; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do ordain as 
follows: 



 - 2 - 

 
Section 1.  Assumption of Orting Transportation Benefit District.  The City of Orting 

does hereby assume the rights, powers, immunities, functions, and obligations of the Orting 
Transportation Benefit District and is hereby vested with every right, power, immunity, function, 
and obligation currently granted to or possessed by the TBD.  The City Council of the City of 
Orting is hereby vested with all rights, powers, immunities, functions, and obligations otherwise 
vested by law in the governing board of the TBD as defined by Section 2-7-3 of the Orting 
Municipal Code (“OMC”). 

 
Section 2.  Orting Transportation Benefit District Abolished.  The Orting 

Transportation Benefit District established pursuant to Section 2-7-2 OMC, and the TBD 
governing board as defined by Section 2-7-3 OMC, are hereby abolished. 
 

Section 3.  Repealer.  Orting Municipal Code Chapter 2-7, entitled “Transportation 
Benefit District,” is hereby repealed in its entirety. 

 
Section 4.  Severability.  Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 

this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
 Section 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of 
the City on or before December 26th, and shall take effect and be in full force on January 1, 2016. 
 
 ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF 
ON THE 18TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2015. 
 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
      
Joachim Pestinger, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
      
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 
 



 - 3 - 

Approved as to form: 
 
 
     
John P. Long, Jr. 
Kenyon Disend PLLC 
City Attorney 
 
Filed with the City Clerk: 11/18/15 
Passed by the City Council: 11/18/15 
Ordinance No. 2015-972 
Date of Publication: 12/26/15 
Effective Date: 12/31/15 

 



-12



n 
Section 2. Publication. This Resolution shall be published at least two times during the 

two weeks preceding the scheduled hearing in newspapers of daily general circulation printed or 
published in the City. 

PASSSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON 

THE 28TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2015. 

ATTEST/ AUTHENTICATED: 

Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

Kenyon Disend, PLLC 
City Attorney 

Filed with the City Clerk: 10/28/15 
Passed by the City Council: 10/28/15 
Resolution No.: 2015-12 

-2-

CITY OF ORTING 

VCl,!l>JLLllH Pestinger, Mayor 

�IA_?�� 
1),_�1vv1,0•



 
Please publish in the November 6 and November 13 editions of the News Tribune 
 
 

CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION ADOPTED 
 

On October 28, 2015 the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington adopted 
the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-12 
An Resolution of the City Council of the City of Orting, declaring the City’s 
intention to assume the Orting Transportation Benefit District and setting a public 
hearing for November 18, 2015. Copies of this resolution are available for review 
upon request at City Hall, 110 Train St. SE, or by contacting Rachel Pitzel, City 
Clerk at 360-893-2219. 
 
 
 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB15-11 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING- 2016 Proposed 
Budget 

Agenda Item #:  AB15-11  
For Agenda of:  11/18/15  
Department:  Finance  
Date Submitted:   11/13/15   

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: enter a timeline if applicable 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Budget Changes, 2016 Proposed Budget 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
This is the second draft of the 2016 budget.  This will be the budget initially shared with the public and 
will be on the web site until there is a final budget approval expected December 9th.  
The General Fund shows approximately a $104,000 deficit.  The causes increased legal expenses, a 
40% increase in jail fees, an expected reduction in the Fire District Lease, increased facility 
maintenance expenses and an increase in subsidizing the Parks Fund.  Mayor Pestinger recommends a 
reduction in the fund balance for this year but to begin work over the next few months to improve the 
general funds revenues/expenses. 
 
The City Administrator and the Parametrix engineer recently completed a review of how the 
employees’ expense is spread out amongst the funds.  This included a time sheet study and an FCS 
study review.  We found that we had been under-expensing the operations and maintenance of the 
Streets Fund, The Parks Fund and the Water Fund, and over-expensing the Sewer Fund and the Storm 
Water Fund.  Funds will be transferred at the end of the year to correct this.  Starting in 2016 the City 
will start daily input of public works staff hours into the financial system.  
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   N/A – Public Hearing ONLY; second Public Hearing 
to be held 11/25/15; with adoption at the 12/9/15 regular Council 
meeting. 

 



Significant (greater than $500) Budget Changes for Draft #2 

Revenues 
General Fund - 001 
 B&O Tax for Natural Gas reduced 13% 
 Gambling Taxes increased 
 Pedestrian Evacuation Bridge grant moved to Streets Fund. 
Parks Fund – 105 
 Increased revenue with transfer of $37,000 from the General Fund to cover O&M 
Water Fund - 401 
 General Facility Charges Increased $120,000 
 Water Sales amended to reflect planned rate increase 
Sewer Fund - 408 
 Wastewater sales amended to reflect planned rate increase 
 Transfers from Parks, Streets and Water to rectify actual O&M Expenses $95,000 
Stormwater Fund - 410 
 Rates modified to reflect planned rate increase 
 NPDES grant reduced $25,000 
 Transfers from Parks, Streets and Water to rectify actual O&M Expenses $35,000 
Expenses 
(Staff salaries and wages as a percent of funds modified to reflect 3 year trend study – Funds 
101, 105, 401,408,410) 
General Fund - 001 
 Jail Fees increased $50,000 
 Vision Building Permit software added for $4,500 
 CGA Committee funds ($4,500) broken up in to $2,000 for Farmers Market, $1,000 for the  
                     Haven, and $1500 set aside for Focus Group surveys. 
 Pedestrian Evacuation Bridge expenses moved to the Streets Fund and enumerated. 
 Transfer to Parks Fund to sufficiently cover O&M - $37,000 
 Added salaries and benefits for Public Works staff who work on General fund facilities 
Streets Fund - 101 
 Vehicles and equipment added with new values to reflect real expenses 
 Transfers to Wastewater and Stormwater to rectify actual O&M Expenses $40,000 
 Bucket Truck removed from Capital Equipment purchase 
 Added a Trail safety at intersection project as a new capital expense - $1,500 
Parks Fund - 105 
 Vehicles and equipment added with new values to reflect real expenses 
 Splash Park increased to $300,000 to add a bathroom to Calistoga Park 
 Calistoga Park Big Toy added for $40,000 
 Transfers to Wastewater and Stormwater to rectify actual O&M Expenses $24,000 
 Bucket Truck removed from Capital Equipment purchase 
Transportation Impact Fee Fund - 101 
 Left Turn Lane project rolled over to 2016 
Water Fund - 401 
 Engineering for Telemetry O&M added for $25,000 



 Interfund Loan payment to Wastewater increased to $250,000 contingent upon GFC revenues. 
 Well #1 Restoration added for $150,000 
 Phase 1 of Orville Rd. Waterline replacement added for $775,000 
 Harman Tank Demolition added for $55,000 
 Vehicles and equipment added with new values to reflect real expenses 
 Bucket Truck removed from Capital Equipment purchase 
Wastewater Fund - 408 
 Vehicles and equipment added with new values to reflect real expenses 
 High Cedars Force main work rolled over to 2016 from 2015 
 Bucket Truck removed from Capital Equipment purchase 
Stormwater Fund - 410 
 Vehicles and equipment added with new values to reflect real expenses 
 Bucket Truck removed from Capital Equipment purchase 





































































































































City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB15-12 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING- 2016 Revenue 
Sources 

Agenda Item #:  AB15-12  
For Agenda of:   11/18/15  
Department:  Finance  
Date Submitted:   11/13/15  

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson X 
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments:  
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
City Treasurer Larson will present Council with a PowerPoint presentation on the 2016 Revenue 
Sources. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   N/A – Public Hearing ONLY. 
 
 
 
 

 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB15-13 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING- 2016 Property 
Tax Levy – (First Read) 

Agenda Item #:  AB15-13  
For Agenda of:   11/18/15  
Department:  Finance  
Date Submitted: 11/13/15 

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Resolution No. 2015-13 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
The dollar amount of the increase over the actual levy amount from the previous year shall be 
$66,325.16 which is a percentage increase of eight percent (8%) from the previous year.  This increase 
is exclusive of additional revenue resulting from new construction, improvements to property, newly 
constructed wind turbines, any increase in value of state assessed property, any annexation that have 
occurred and refunds made. 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   N/A – Public Hearing ONLY. To be adopted at the 
11/25/15 regular Council meeting. 

 



- 1 - 
 

 

CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-13 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF 
ORTING, WASHINGTON, REQUESTING 
THE HIGHEST LAWFUL LEVY 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of Orting, Washington has met and considered its budget for 
the calendar year 2016; and 
 

WHEREAS, the districts actual levy amount from the previous year was $767,088.68; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the population of this district is less than 10,000; and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Be it resolved by the governing body of the taxing district that an increase in the regular 
property tax levy is hereby authorized for the levy to be collected in the 2015 tax year. 
 
 The dollar amount of the increase over the actual levy amount from the previous year 
shall be $66,325.16 which is a percentage increase of eight percent (8%) from the previous year.  
This increase is exclusive of additional revenue resulting from new construction, improvements 
to property, newly constructed wind turbines, any increase in value of state assessed property, 
any annexation that have occurred and refunds made. 
 
 ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON 
THE 25TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2015. 
 
       CITY OF ORTING 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Joachim Pestinger, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
______________________________ 
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 
John P. Long, Jr., City Attorney 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB15-14 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING- 2016 Utility Rate 
Changes – (First Read) 

Agenda Item #:  AB15-14  
For Agenda of:  11/18/15  
Department:   Utilities  
Date Submitted: 11/13/15 

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune  Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: N/A 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: Funds 401, 408, and 410 will all 

result in increased revenues.  At this time, an 
exact financial projection has not been made. 

Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford X 
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Proposed Ordinance No. 2015-973; 2016 Proposed Rates 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
The cost of service analysis provided by FCS Group has shown that additional rate increases are 
needed to sufficiently fund the currently planned Capital Improvement Projects for the Sanitary Sewer, 
Water and Storm Sewer utilities as well as operations and maintenance. These rate increases reflect 
the recommended Utility Committee percentage increases for 2015. 
  
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  The Public Works Committee is 
recommending approval. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   N/A – Public Hearing ONLY. To be adopted at the 
11/25/15 regular Council meeting. 
 
 
 
 

 



 - 1 - 

 CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-973 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 
WASHINGTON, RELATING TO UTILITY RATES; 
ADOPTING ADJUSTMENTS TO WATER, SEWER AND 
STORMWATER UTILITY RATES; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, in 2010 the City of Orting, by and through Parametrix, its contract 
engineering firm, contracted with FCS Group (hereinafter the “Consultant”) to conduct a 
comprehensive utility rate and cost of service study (hereinafter the “Study”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this Study was to assist the City in maintaining financially 

stable utilities and to promote a fair and equitable allocation of water, sewer, and stormwater 
system costs to its customers; and  

 
WHEREAS, the scope of this study included the following major elements: 
 

· Financial policies development; 
· General facility charges (GFCs) update; 
· Revenue requirements forecast; 
· Cost of service analyses; 
· Rate structure evaluation; and 
· High Cedars sewer cost of service analysis (separate Technical Memorandum). 

 
WHEREAS, the methods used to complete the Study were based on analytical principles 

generally accepted and widely followed throughout the industry, i.e., rates and charges must 
generate enough revenue to maintain self-supporting and financially viable utilities without 
undue discrimination toward or against any customer; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Consultant worked closely with City staff to establish financial policies 

and arrive at rate and charge conclusions that meet forecasted utility financial obligations, 
achieve near term City goals, comply with legal requirements, and adhere to industry best 
practices; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted ordinances in 2011 and 2012 implementing the 

majority of the recommended changes to the water, sewerage and stormwater rates and rate 
structures; and 

 



 - 2 - 

WHEREAS, the implemented rate increases were intended to reflect an amount up to but 
no greater than the cost of service and such revenues reasonably required to maintain self-
supporting and financially viable utilities without undue discrimination toward or against any 
customer; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Study recommended flat annual water utility rate increases of 9.5% 

commencing in year 2012 and ending in year 2018 in order to adequately fund operating 
expenses, debt service, and system reinvestment funded from water utility rate revenues; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council having been in all matters fully advised finds that an 

adjustment to the water utility rates equal to or less than the recommended increase of 9.5% is 
necessary to meet revenue requirements to cover the costs necessary to maintain a self-
supporting and financially viable water utility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Study also recommended a flat annual sanitary sewer utility rate 

increase of 3% commencing in 2013 and ending in 2018 with a potential 23% increase in 2019; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council having been in all matters fully advised finds that an 

adjustment to the sanitary sewerage utility rates equal to or less than the recommended increase 
of 3% is necessary to meet revenue requirements to cover the costs necessary to maintain a self-
supporting and financially viable sanitary sewer utility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Study recommended two years of 30% increases in stormwater utility 

rates for years 2011 and 2012 to pay debt service for the Setback Levee project, followed by 
6.0% increases in years 2013-2016, and then 4.0% increases in years 2018-2019; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council having been in all matters fully advised finds that an 

adjustment to the stormwater utility rates equal to or less than the unimplemented cumulative 
recommended rate increase over years 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015 is necessary to meet 
revenue requirements to cover the costs necessary to maintain a self-supporting and financially 
viable stormwater utility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the public interest to implement the 

water, sewer and stormwater rate increases as set forth herein in order to ensure that each utility 
has sufficient revenue to be self-supporting and financially viable;  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Orting, Washington, do ordain as 
follows: 
 

Section 1.  Adoption of Recitals.  The City Council hereby finds that the above recitals 
are true and correct and hereby adopts such recitals as though fully set forth herein.   

 
Section 2. Establishment of Water, Sewer and Storm Water Utility Rates.  Effective 

January 1, 2016, the rates for, water utility use fees imposed pursuant to OMC9-1D-2, sanitary 
sewer use charges imposed pursuant to OMC 9-2B-1, and stormwater utility use fees imposed 



 - 3 - 

pursuant to OMC 9-5C-6, are adjusted to those amounts set forth in the respective 2016 utility 
rate column in exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated as though fully set forth herein.  

 
Section 3.  Severability.  Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of 

this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 
otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state 
or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 
 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of 
the City, and shall take effect and be in full force at 12:01 a.m. on January 1, 2016.  A summary of 
this Ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the ordinance in its entirety. 
 
 ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF 
ON THE _____ DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2015. 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
     
Joachim Pestinger, Mayor 

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
      
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
     
John P. Long, Jr. 
Kenyon Disend PLLC 
City Attorney 
 
Filed with the City Clerk: 
Ordinance No.  
Date of Publication:  
Effective Date: 
 
 
attch:  Exh. “A” (Utility Rates) 
 



Exhibit "A"





City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB15-15 
SUBJECT: Deputy Mayor solicitation of two 
Councilmembers to recommend a candidate 
for Deputy Mayor for the year 2016 

Agenda Item #:   AB15-15  
For Agenda of: 11/18/15  
Department:   Council  
Date Submitted:  11/5/15  

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger x Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune x Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: effective January 1, 2016 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: N/A 
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☐Mayor        ☒Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☐City Administrator 
 
Attachments: None 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
Per the City Council Rules of Procedure:  
 
Chapter 8 section 5 - Selecting Deputy Mayor: The Deputy Mayor will be selected by a majority of the 
Councilmembers annually beginning in September and concluding in October. Outgoing Deputy Mayor 
will solicit two other councilmembers to nominate a candidate for his/her replacement for a full 
Council vote. (see 3.9B) 
 
Chapter 3 section 9 (B) - Deputy Mayor--Duties: Annually, in September, the outgoing Deputy Mayor, 
with the help of two councilmembers, will solicit and recommend a candidate for Deputy Mayor with 
confirmation from the entire council for his/her replacement in January. 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  N/A 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   At this time Deputy Mayor will solicit two 
Councilmembers to nominate a candidate for replacement for the 
year 2016. 

 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB15-16 
SUBJECT: AWC Legislative Goals and Council 
Legislative Priorities for 2016 

Agenda Item #:   AB15-16  
For Agenda of:  11/18/15  
Department:  Council  
Date Submitted:   11/5/15   

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  
Mayor, Joachim Pestinger X Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: N/A 
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☐Mayor        ☒Councilmember      ☒Committee Chair        ☐City Administrator 
 
Attachments: AWC Legislative Goals for 2016; Council Legislative Priorities 2016 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
This draft of the Council legislative priorities for 2016 was drawn up by the Community and 
Government Affairs Committee.  The flexible use of REET has become a major issue.  The City uses this 
$200,000 of this tax to maintain the integrity of the parks and streets fund. The use for O&M ends at 
the end of 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  Discussed at the Community and 
Government Affairs Committee on 10/9/15 and 11/9/15. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to accept the Council Legislative 
Priorities for 2016 as prepared. 
 

 





City of Orting Legislative Priorities 
November 13, 2015 

1. Maintain flexible use of Real Estate Excise Tax.  After the loss of the car tab fees Orting as well as other 
Washington cities had insufficient funds for street and park maintenance.  The advent of flexible use of REET 
funds in 2011 revived these funds and has provided a bare minimum of funding.  City parks are an invaluable 
asset for low cost child and family recreation.  This flexible use has been further constrained by new legislation 
EHB2122 that allows maintenance only on REET built assets.  It is probably impossible to determine what 
capital assets have been built with REET as most capital projects in streets and parks had mixed funding.  It is 
paramount that our legislators approve an amendment to EHB 2122 for more flexible use of REET Funds in the 
2016 short session. 

2. Restore and maintain historical revenue sharing where the state taxes commercial industries including 
liquor and Marijuana. The City’s public safety services will be stretched given the public consumption of 
liquor and now marijuana. The enhanced public safety funding promised in the 2011 liquor privatization 
initiative hasn’t been kept – in fact funding has been cut by legislative action and diverted to other uses. The 
new recreational marijuana industry is subject to up to a 75% state excise tax, but none of this potential revenue 
is directed to locals to address public safety needs and other local impacts. Cities and counties must enforce 
marijuana laws and need shared revenue to do this. 

3. Transportation priorities: A gas tax has been approved for improvements to SR167, but capacity improvements 
to SR162/SR 162-Hwy 410 interchange have not been included.  These projects are not included in the state’s 
future transportation capital plan and funding at this time.   We need a new initiative to keep them in the state 
transportation plan. Lobby against new home expansion in unincorporated Pierce County, particularly Tehaleh 
and South Hill until there is sufficient capacity improvement to SR162.  

4. Halt and refrain from raiding infrastructure funds like the Public Works Trust Fund and Model Toxics 
Control Accounts and build them back to health. Our infrastructure is aging and we can’t keep up with 
demands and regulatory requirements. Great cities don’t just happen – we need planned and sustained 
investments in infrastructure in order for Washington to thrive.  Orting’s sewer plant, well and new reservoir 
would not have been built without the low interest loan from the Public Trust Fund.  

5. Planning and development for disaster preparedness.  Orting as well as all of western Washington is at high 
risk for hazards including volcanic eruption, lahar flows, and extreme earthquakes.  The Orting Pedestrian 
Evacuation Bridge system (Bridge For Kids), infrastructure protection, improved current evacuation plans, and 
resiliency to disasters require state and federal financial support.  Analysis indicates that during school time, 
many children will not make a walk to high ground in sufficient time to escape a volcanic lahar from Mt. 
Rainier.  City infrastructure is also vulnerable to flooding and storms. The City will seek more collaboration 
with Pierce County DEM and State EMD departments. 

6. Postpone/reduce requirements of National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit 2.   
Orting has met NPDES requirements to date but the 2012-2014 requirements are vague or not yet stated.  The 
known requirements will be expensive to implement, and still contain significant unfunded liability.  This is not 
the time for unfunded mandates, new expenses, and risk for cities.     

7. Orting Valley/ Agriculture: The City is looking for ways to accommodate and build upon the agriculture of the 
valley.  Strategies include branding by delineating a portion of the valley to be known as “the Orting 
Agricultural Valley” as opposed to the “Puyallup Valley”.  The expectation is that the City will be able to 
provide the urban resources for the valley that might include a farmers market, a food coop, a feed store, farm 
machinery sales and repair, animal rendering, animal expos, commercial kitchen, food processing, and a food 
hub.  Farming can be incentivized with lower property taxes, reduced environmental regulations, increased 
education, access to best practices, and access to low cost capital.  Of greatest concern now is the lack of 
water rights to develop more agriculture and the difficulty in establishing sufficient water sources.  
Maintain and increase collaboration with conservation groups. 

8. Public Records requests: Establish new statewide policies and procedures for Public Records Requests that set 
common sense limits on requests and penalties and provides remuneration to the City. A recent public records 
request in Seattle seeks all the video from police cameras from the last 5 years.  All these videos must have 
redactions.  The expense will be in the thousands and could take up to 3 years to complete.  Recently Orting 
received a public records request from a national data gathering for-profit business requiring the city to provide 
details of every purchase made since 2008 including all vendors’ information during that time, electronically 
(no hard copies).  State regulations do not provide a way for the City to recoup this expense.  What will keep 
other commercial interests from requesting this level and volume of information in the future?   



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB15-17 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2015-14, fixing 
cemetery fees and charges and repealing 
Resolution No. 2011-4 

Agenda Item #:   AB15-17  
For Agenda of:   11/18/15  
Department:  Finance   
Date Submitted:  11/13/15   

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline:  
City Treasurer, Scott Larson X 
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☐Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☒Committee Chair        ☐City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Resolution No. 2015-14 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
The costs of the operation and maintenance of the cemetery have increased to the point where it is 
necessary and proper that a new schedule of cemetery charges be increased. The proposed resolution 
shows those increases.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  Finance Committee recommends 
approval.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to adopt Resolution No. 2015-14, fixing 
cemetery fees and charges and repealing Resolution No. 2011-4. 

 



- 1 - 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
WASHINGTON 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-14 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ORTING, 

WASHINGTON FIXING CEMETERY FEES AND 
CHARGES AND REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 2011-4 

              
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Orting has by Council Resolution, adopted a 
schedule of cemetery charges to be applicable to the Orting Cemetery which is operated by the 
City of Orting; and 

  
 WHEREAS, costs of the operation and maintenance of the cemetery have increased to 
the point where it is necessary and proper that a new schedule of cemetery charges be adopted; 
and 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Orting as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Fees and Charges.  That the following schedule of fees and charges are 
adopted: 
 
 a.  Lot Fees: 

Full Sized Resident $1,440.00 
Full Sized Non-Resident $1,580.00 
Cremains Resident $525.00 
Cremains Non-Resident $575.00 
Child Sized Lot $254.00 

 
 b.  Columbaria. 

Resident $500.00 
Non-Resident $750.00 

   
 c.  Concrete Liners.   

Adult Grave Liner $500.00 (plus sales tax) 
Child Grave Liner $400.00 (plus sales tax) 
Cremains Grave Liner $200.00 (plus sales tax) 

 
 d.  Opening and Closing Costs.   

Adult Liner $700.00 
Adult Vault $850.00 
Cremains $400.00 
Child Liner $232.00 
Child Vault $232.00 

 



- 2 - 
 

 e.  Disinterment 
Adult $3,500.00 
Child $1,232.00 

 
 f.  Memorial Marker Setting Charges 

Flat Marker $300.00 
Resetting Fee $185.00 
Vase $84.00 

 
 g.  Other Charges 

Set-up Fee $75.00 
Saturday Service $500.00 

    
 Section 2.  Orting Resident.  For the purposes of determining cemetery fees an Orting 
Resident shall be defined as an individual with a home or business address in the Orting City 
Limits.  In the event a question arises the City Administrator or designee shall determine if the 
resident rate shall be granted 
  
 Section -3.  Severability.   If any one or more sections, subsections, or sentences of this 
Resolution are held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portion of this Resolution and the same shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Section 4.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect and be in force immediately 
upon its passage. 
 
 PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON 
THE 25TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2015. 
 
       CITY OF ORTING 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Joachim Pestinger, Mayor  
 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
John P. Long, Jr., 
Kenyon Disend PLLC 
City Attorney 



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB15-18 
SUBJECT: Calistoga Setback Levee Wetland 
Mitigation Plan Revisions and Pierce County 
Coordination 

Agenda Item #:  AB15-18  
For Agenda of:  11/18/15  
Department:  Public Works   
Date Submitted: 11/13/15 

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $21,720  
City Administrator, Mark Bethune  Amount Budgeted:   $10,000  
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: work to begin upon approval 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 110-594-31-41-16 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin  Fiscal Note: 100% of this work is eligible for 

reimbursement through the grant balance with 
the Pierce County Flood Control Zone District. 

Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford X 
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☒Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☐Committee Chair        ☒City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Scope of Work 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
Throughout the course of constructions of the Calistoga Setback Levee the monitoring and 
management of the mitigation areas has required much more effort than anticipated. Events such as 
the high water in November of 2014 and the extremely dry summer have resulted in multiple field 
visits and modifications to the mitigation plan. As a result, plant substitutions have been made and 
both the US Army Corps of Engineers and the WA. Department of Ecology are requesting a revised 
mitigation plan.  
 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  Public Works Committee recommends 
approval. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to approve the Scope of Work for Phase 
5001- Calistoga Setback Levee Wetland Mitigation Plan Revisions 
and Pierce County Coordination. 

 



Calistoga Setback Levee 216-1711-020 
Additional Services 1 November 4, 2015  
  

SCOPE OF WORK 

City of Orting  

PHASE 5001 – CALISTOGA SETBACK LEVEE WETLAND MITIGATION PLAN REVISIONS 
AND PIERCE COUNTY COORDINATION 

Throughout the course of construction of the Calistoga Setback Levee the monitoring and management of 
the mitigation areas has required much more effort than anticipated.  Events such as the high water in 
November of 2014 and the extremely dry summer have resulted in multiple field visits and modifications 
to the mitigation plan. As a result, plant substitutions have been made and both the US Army Corps of 
Engineers and the Washington Department of Ecology are requesting a revised mitigation plan.   

Furthermore, Pierce County has requested additional effort of the Construction Management team 
regarding transfer of ownership and maintenance of the levee.  The County is still disputing the levee 
material used during construction and the means and methods utilized.  All material was placed consistent 
with the plans and specifications for the Calistoga Setback Levee, but the County has written letters of 
protest to the City.  This has required site meetings, phone calls and drafting of letters to the County. 
 

Task 1 – Project Management and Administration 

Objectives 

Work under this task includes time to administer and coordinate the various project elements that will be 
ongoing throughout all phases of the project. This work includes: 

• Preparation of scope and budget for Engineering Services to provide a framework for completion 
of the Project in a logical, efficient fashion. 

• Coordination, correspondence, and review meetings with City of Orting staff. 

• In-house project administration, scheduling, and direction of project staff. 

• Preparation of monthly progress reports (assume three). 

Deliverables 

The deliverables for this task include: 

• Monthly progress letters. 

• Miscellaneous correspondence and letters. 

• Project files. 

Assumptions 

Following are the assumptions for this task: 

• The duration of this project will take 4 months or less. 



Calistoga Setback Levee 216-1711-020 
Additional Services 2 November 4, 2015  
  

Task 2 – Mitigation Plan Revisions 

Objectives 

To provide a revised mitigation plan consistent with the requests of the US Army Corps of Engineers and 
the Washington Department of Ecology.  

Approach 

Based on site conditions differing from the mitigation report, modifications will be made to the Final 
Mitigation Plan for the Calistoga Setback Levee. This will require updating the performance standards 
and installed plant materials based on field conditions.    

Deliverables 

The deliverables for this task include: 

• Revised Final Mitigation Plan submitted to the US Army Corps of Engineers and the Washington 
Department of Ecology 

Assumptions 

Following are the assumptions for this task: 

• After one submittal to US Army Corps of Engineers and Washington Department of Ecology, 
minimal modifications (8 hours) will be needed with one follow up submittal  

Task 3 – Pierce County Coordination 

Objectives 

This task will include coordination with Pierce County during the transfer of ownership from the City of 
Orting to Pierce County.  This includes editing and finalizing the interlocal agreement with Pierce 
County. 

Approach 

Parametrix will manage and coordinate the editing and finalization of the interlocal agreement with Pierce 
County.  This includes meeting with Pierce County at the Pierce County Surface Water Management 
office if needed. 

Deliverables 

The deliverables for this task include: 

• Interlocal agreement for signature by the City of Orting. 

Assumptions 

Following are the assumptions for this task: 

• This effort will not take more than 40 hours. 



Calistoga Setback Levee 216-1711-020 
Additional Services 3 November 4, 2015  
  

Task 4 – Post High Water Event Evaluation 

Objectives 

This task will include a field visit and assessment following the October 31, 2015 high water event, and 
reporting to the Department of Ecology and US Army Corps of Engineers. 

Approach 

Parametrix conduct a site visit to determine if any damage to the mitigation areas occurred during the 
October 31, 2015 high water event.  The Puyallup River peaked at 13,880 cfs, overtopped the old levee, 
and inundated the mitigation areas with water.  Observed damage will be photographed and documented.  
Coordination with the contractor and both regulatory agencies will follow to determine any repairs needed 
to damage mitigation area.   

Deliverables 

The deliverables for this task include: 

• Damage assessment of mitigation areas including photos 

Assumptions 

Following are the assumptions for this task: 

• This effort will not require modifications to the monitoring report beyond what is descripted in 
Task 2. 

• A technical memorandum to the US Army Corps of Engineers and the Department of Ecology 
will be sufficient documentation. 

 

 



Client: City of Orting
Project: City of Orting On-call 2014-2017
Project No: 2161711020

Jo
hn

 C
. 

Hu
ng

er
fo

rd

Ap
ril

 D
. W

hi
tt

ak
er

Sh
ar

i M
or

ga
n

Pu
ya

llu
p 

Pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

 (W
P)

Da
rr

en
 S

an
de

no

M
at

th
ew

 J.
 

Ka
st

be
rg

De
en

a 
M

. 
Hu

en
ek

a

Sr
 E

ng
in

ee
r

Pr
oj

ec
t C

on
tr

ol
s 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t

Sr
 P

ro
je

ct
 

Ac
co

un
ta

nt

Pu
ya

llu
p 

Pu
bl

ic
at

io
ns

 (W
P)

Sr
 P

la
nn

er

CB
 D

iv
isi

on
 

M
an

ag
er

Pr
oj

ec
t C

on
tr

ol
s 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t

Burdened Rates: $170.00 $110.00 $105.00 $95.00 $175.00 $195.00 $110.00
Phase Task Description Labor Dollars Labor Hours
5001 Calistoga Setback Adl Serv. $21,720.00 140 56 4 4 20 40 8 8

01    Project Management $2,220.00 16 8 4 4
02    Mitigation Plan Revisions $6,940.00 48 16 24 4 4
03    Pierce County Coordination $6,800.00 40 40
04    Post High Water Eval $5,760.00 36 8 4 16 4 4

Labor Totals: $21,720.00 140 56 4 4 20 40 8 8
$9,520.00 $440.00 $420.00 $1,900.00 $7,000.00 $1,560.00 $880.00

Amount
12.50$                   

6.00$                     
34.50$                   
53.00$                   

21,773.00$           Project Total:

DIRECT EXPENSES:
Description
B & W 8.5 x 11
Color 8.5 x 11
Mileage
Expense Total:



City Of Orting  
Council Agenda Summary Sheet 

 

AB15-19 
SUBJECT: Requesting approval to seek RFPs 
for Fleet Maintenance Service’s for Orting 
Police & Public Works Departments 

Agenda Item #:   AB15-19  
For Agenda of:  11/18/15  
Department:  Public Works/Police  
Date Submitted:  11/5/15   

 
Orting Staff & Professional Representatives  

Mayor, Joachim Pestinger  Cost of Item:   $0   
City Administrator, Mark Bethune X Amount Budgeted:   $0   
City Attorney, Jay Long  Unexpended Balance:   $0   
City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel  Timeline: enter a timeline if applicable 
City Treasurer, Scott Larson  
Police Chief, Bill Drake  BARS: 
Public Works, Dean Kaelin X Fiscal Note:  
Recreation and Parks, Beckie Meek  
Municipal Court, Kaaren Woods  
Parametrix, JC Hungerford  
BHC Consultants, Roger Wagoner  
Agenda Placement:  ☐Mayor        ☐Councilmember      ☒Committee Chair        ☐City Administrator 
 
Attachments: Request for Proposal 
SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
City would like to request proposals for the selection of a primary location for furnishing maintenance 
and repair services, including all labor, parts and material necessary for the various classifications, 
types and makes/models of vehicles. 
 
Scope of service to include: Preventative maintenance; repairs and maintenance; transport of vehicles 
for service; conditions on required services; repair order content and procedure and hours of 
operation. 
 
Proposals to be received by 4 p.m. on Monday, February 1, 2016. 
 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:  The Transportation Committee is 
recommending approval from their November 4, 2015 Committee meeting. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to approve the city to go out for 
Request for Proposal (RFPs) on Fleet Maintenance Services for the 
Orting Police and Public Works Departments. 

 



1  

 
 

CITY OF ORTING 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

FLEET MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR ORTING POLICE & PUBLIC WORKS 
DEPARTMENTS 

 
 

I. PURPOSE OF REQUEST. 
 

The City of Orting ("City") is requesting proposals for the selection of a primary location for furnishing 
maintenance and repair services, including all labor, parts and material necessary for the various classifications, 
types and makes/models of vehicles. Please note that this would not be an exclusive maintenance contract. A 
list of existing city vehicles are attached herein as examples only. The number, make/model and composition 
may change without prior notice. Contractors located in the general areas of Orting, within a fifteen (15) mile 
radius of City Hall are preferred. The selection will be based on overall price, services, performance and 
reliability of the proposers. The City's needs are outlined in the following Request for Proposal ("RFP"). 

 
II. TIME SCHEDULE. 

 
It is the City’s intent to follow the following process and timetable, resulting in the selection of a firm. 

 
Issue RFP ........................................................................................................ 1/4/16 
Any questions/clarifications submitted in writing to the City by: ................... 1/18/16 
City response to written questions to all parties receiving the RFP ..............  1/25/16 
Deadline for Submittal of Proposals at 4:00pm...............................................  2/1/16 
Preliminary Selection of Vendor .....................................................................  2/8/16 
Notify Firm Chosen.........................................................................................    2/9/16 

 
 

III. INSTRUCTIONS TO CONTRACTORS. 

A. All proposals must be addressed to: 
 

Rachel Pitzel, Orting City Clerk  
P.O. Box 489 
Orting, WA 98360  
(360) 893-2219 

 

B. All proposals must be in a sealed envelope and clearly marked in the lower left-hand corner: "Fleet 
Maintenance Services”. The name and address of the proposing business must be shown on the face 
of the envelope. 

C. All proposals must be received by 4:00pm on Monday, February 1, 2016 at which time they may be 
opened. Three (3) copies of the proposal must be enclosed in the sealed envelope. No facsimile, 
electronic or telephone proposals will be accepted. Proposers are cautioned that failure to comply may 
result in non-acceptance of the offer. 

D. Proposals should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straight forward, concise 
description of provider capabilities to satisfy the requirements of the request. Special bindings, 
colored displays, promotional materials, etc. are not desired. Emphasis should be on completeness and 
clarity of content. 

E. The City Clerk or representative will notify the firm selected near or on the date indicated above. 



2  

F. Proposal Submittal (using the forms in Exhibit C): 
 

Y The names of individuals who will be working on City vehicles and their qualifications, 
experience, area of expertise, and time employed by the Contractor. 

 
Y A proposed outline of tasks, products and project schedule including the hours required to 

complete each task or product. 
 

Y A proposed budget based on the above outline of task, products and schedules 
 

Y References 
 
 
 

IV. SELECTION CRITERIA. 

Criteria........................................................................................................................... Weight Given 

1. Responsiveness of the written proposal ................................................................. ……40% 
To the purpose and scope of service, 
completeness and clarity of all required 
information and any supplemental 
information provided by Contractor that 
will demonstrate the quality of services. 

 
2. Price…………………………………………………………………………………….50% 

 
3. Ability, experience, financial resources…………………………………………...........10% 

and history of successfully completing 
contracts of this type, meeting projected 
deadlines and experience in similar 
work, location, the character, integrity, 
reputation, judgment and efficiency of 
the Contractor. 

 
Total Criteria Weight............... …100% 

Each proposal will be independently evaluated on Factors 1 through 3. 

V. SCOPE OF SERVICES. 
 

The scope of service, operating procedures, and vehicles to be covered are attached herein as Exhibit A, B, 
and D respectively. 

 
 

VI. TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 
 

A. This proposal shall be for a period of two years beginning February 15, 2016 and ending February 
14, 2018. This contract may be renewed each February for the following two (2) years (2019 & 2020) upon 
performance audit and approval by the City. The City reserves the right and the Bidder agrees to allow the 
City the option to renew, at the City’s sole discretion, for up to two (2) additional one-year periods. The 
unit price of the contract will be adjusted each year using the Seattle Consumer Price Index –Urban 
(CPI-U) rate. 

 
B. The City reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, and to waive minor irregularities in any 

proposal. 



3  

C. The City reserves the right to request clarification of information submitted, and to request 
additional information from any proposer. 

 
D. The City reserves the right to award any contract to the next most qualified proposer, if the 

successful proposer does not execute a contract within fifteen  (15) days after award of proposal 
 

E. The City reserves the right to award all or a portion of the required services to the more than one 
qualified contractor at the City’s sole discretion. 

 
F. Any proposal may be withdrawn up until the date and time set above for opening of the proposals. 

Any proposal not so timely withdrawn shall constitute an irrevocable offer, for a period of ninety 
(90) days to provide the City the services described in the attached specifications, or until one or 
more of the proposals have been accepted and an agreement executed by the City, whichever 
occurs first. 

 
G. The contract resulting from acceptance of a proposal by the City shall be in a form supplied or 

approved by the City, and shall reflect the specifications in this RFP. A copy of the contract is 
attached, exhibit E and shall include requirements to comply with ADA, Civil Rights Act and EEP 
requirements. The City reserves the right to reject any proposed agreement or contract that does 
not conform to the specifications contained in this RFP, and which is not approved by the City 
Attorney's office. 

 
H. Prior to contract award, the City will meet with the Contractor to review procedures for invoicing, 

payment, reporting, if any, and monitoring contract performance. 
 

I. The Contractor should expect that schedule semiannual meetings with shop management to 
review service performance. 

 
J. The City shall not be responsible for any costs incurred by the firm in preparing, submitting or 

presenting its response to the RFP. 
 

K. The City reserves the right to perform unannounced site visits, interview staff and management, 
and test repairs prior to selection to determine, among other things: 
a. Customer service responsiveness 
b. Shop organization and operation efficiency 
c. Response time 

 
 

VII. COMPENSATION 
 

A. Present detailed information the firm’s proposed fee schedule for the specifications proposed and 
for any variation for the non-routine services, inclusive of Washington State sales tax and any 
other applicable governmental charges. Provide specifics as to definitions of routine versus non 
routine tasks, what is fixed as opposed to variable, and how costs are adjusted according to that 
classification 

 
B. Payment by the City for the services will only be made after the services have been performed and 

accepted by authorized City representatives. The City requires that all its vendors have a 
Department of Treasury Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 on file with the City to accommodate 
payment.  Itemized billings shall be submitted upon completion containing information specified 
by the City as described in Exhibit A under Repair Order. Monthly statements shall be submitted 
by the 30th of each month with a listing of all Repair Order Numbers, cost, and date identified. 
Payment will be made thirty (30) days after receipt of monthly statement.  Discount periods must 
be extended if the billing invoice is returned for credit or correction. 



4  

VIII. RFP CONTENTS AND ATTACHMENTS Page 

1 This RFP ........................................................................................................ 

2 Exhibit A – Scope of Service ......................................................................... 

Schedule A: Preventive Maintenance Schedule .............................................. 

3 Exhibit B – Operating Procedures .................................................................. 

4 Exhibit C – Proposal Forms, consisting of 

I. Management Information ........................................................................ 

II.   References ............................................................................................... 

III.  Supplemental Questionnaire ................................................................... 

IV.  Facility Description ................................................................................. 

V.   Subcontractor List ................................................................................... 

VI.  Cost and Conditions ................................................................................ 

VII. Proposal Pricing Work Sheet…………………………………………. 

5 Exhibit D – Vehicle List ................................................................................. 

6 Exhibit E – Sample of Maintenance/Labor contract agreement……….. 



5  

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICE 

 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

The successful contractor must be able to perform general and preventative maintenance and common repair services on 
vehicles and equipment that include, but are not limited to, brakes, suspension, heat/air conditioning systems, electrical 
systems, engine, etc. The City’s preference is to have a primary Contractor that has the ability to perform all required 
services if possible. However, work may be sub-contracted. When sub-contractors are used, the Contractor is primarily 
responsible for performance including but not limited to, billing, reporting, scheduling, delivery, work quality, and 
warranty. 

 
This Request for Proposal is divided into vehicle manufactures, service items and sub-items to allow the award of more 
than one contract, if it is deemed to be in the City’s best interest. The City of Orting reserves the right to award all items 
and sub-items to one or more vendors, multiple items with sub-items to one vendor or in any manner deemed to be most 
advantageous to the City. 

 
The Contractor must have the ability to provide required preventative maintenance and repair service listed in Section E 
(below) for the fleet listed on Exhibit D. Any exception including subcontracting must be noted in the response. 

 
A. Preventative Maintenance 

The City’s vehicles are routinely driven in short distance; frequent start/stop; and long idle periods. 
The attached Schedule A outlines preventative maintenance requirements due to the use conditions. 
The average annual usage is normally around 10,000 miles for administrative purposes vehicles and 
16,000 Police patrol vehicles.  The average annual mileage for public works vehicles is about 5,000. 

 
B. Repairs and Maintenance 

Provide service/repairs to all common mechanical and electrical systems as needed. 
 

C. Transport of Vehicles for Service 

• For non-scheduled emergency service, courtesy transportation for customer to and from city 
facilities and other locations within city limits. 

City Shop – 110 Train St. SE, Orting 
Public Safety Bldg. – 401 Washington Ave SE, Orting 

• For vehicles not drivable, additional towing charge may be billed upon approval of authorized 
city staff. 

 
D. Conditions on Required Services 

• 24-hour turn-around on common repairs (including brakes, etc.) and routine maintenance. 

• When a prior appointment has been made for routine maintenance, the turn-around time should 
be four (4) hours. 

• Provide adequate inventory on special parts to ensure minimum turn-around on non-common 
repairs. 

• Wash and vacuum vehicle after each service 



6  

E. Repair Order Content and Procedure 

The Contractor shall provide repair orders for all services provided containing the following 
information: 

• Repair estimates with anticipated work to be performed, estimated completion time, and 
estimate cost signed by the city staff upon pick-up/drop-off. A confirming copy with final cost 
shall be mailed to City upon completion, and a billing copy shall be sent to the City with the 
monthly statement. 

• Actual work/cost above written estimate requires City approval prior to work start. 

• Authorization of work by designated City Fleet Supervisor or designee is required for all repair 
orders. 

• Individual vehicle charges shall be submitted on separate repair orders for each service visit. 
The repair order must include: 
Y Date work performed 
Y Vehicle and/or license #, make/model 
Y Vehicle mileage at time of service/repair 
Y Date in / date out / time completed 
Y Detail type of service, hours, material used, and cost associated with each. 
Y Subcontracted repair orders containing same information shall be attached to contractor repair 

order. 

• The Contractor guarantees and warrants that all material furnished and all services performed 
under said contract will be free from defects in material and workmanship and will conform to 
the requirements of this contract for a period of 120 days or 4,000 miles, whichever occurs 
first. The Contractor shall remedy all such defects at his/her own expense within one (1) 
working day after notification by the City. 

• Warranty and subcontracted repair orders need to be provided by the Contractor. Contractor is 
prime contractor; however, subcontractors may be used by Contractor. Contractor assumes 
responsibility for work of subcontractors. The charges for such services to the City shall be the 
amount of the subcontractor’s invoice for services performed, or the contract price, whichever is 
less. 

 
F. Hours of Operation 

The City has a number of services that are active on a 24/7 basis and desires the most 
comprehensive hour coverage possible. Please identify normal business hours and emergency 
business hours if available. 



7  

Schedule A: Preventive Maintenance Schedule 
 

Service Frequency 
Service A Service B Service C  Service D  Service E 
4 month 8 month 12 month 24 month 48 month 

Service 4000 miles 8000 miles 12000 miles 30000 miles 60000 miles 
1 Change Engine Oil x x x x x 
2 Change Engine Oil Filter x x x x x 
3 Check Air Filter Condition x x x x x 
4 Check and Adjust Drive Belts x x x x x 
5 Check Battery Electrolyte Level, Add Water As 

Needed; Clean And Tighten Terminals 
x x x x x 

6 Check Brake Fluid Level x x x x x 
7 Check Brake Pads, Shoes, Hoses x x x x x 
8 Check Breather Condition x x x x x 
9 Check Drive Tran Fluid Levels (Transmission, 

Transfer case, Differential) 
10 Check Engine Compartment Fluid Levels, Add As 

Needed 

x x x x x 
 

x x x x x 

11 Check Engine Cooling System, Hoses And Clamps x x x x x 
12 Check Exhaust System x x x x x 
13 Check Front And Rear Shocks For Wear and/or 

Leakage 
14 Check Exterior & Interior Lights And Other Electrical 

Items For Correct Operation 

x x x x x 
 

x x x x x 

15 Check Power Steering Fluid Level x x x x x 
16 Check Tire Pressure And Condition x x x x x 
17 Check Windshield Wiper operation, Blades condition, 

Washer Solvent level, Fill as needed. 
x x x x x 

18 Lubricate Chassis/CV boots x x x x x 
19 Lubricate Steering Linkage x x x x x 
20 Check Front Brake Pads, Rotors And Calipers x x x x 
21 Check Rear Brake Shoes, Drums And Wheel Cylinders x x x x 
22 Rotate Tires (4 Way - Front To Rear) x x x x x 
23 Air Filter - Replace x x x 
24 Check Headlight Alignment x x x 
25 Check Parking Brake Operation x x x x x 
26 Lubricate Door Latches, Locks And Hinges x x x x x 
27 Fuel Filter - Replace x x x 
28 Transmission - Change Fluid, Filter, Gasket x x x 
29 Check Air Condition System, Freon Level And x 

Compressor Operation Where Applicable 



- 8 -  

EXHIBIT B 
 

OPERATING PROCEDURES 
FOR VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 
This section sets forth the operating policy and procedures for servicing City vehicles and equipment. It discusses 
maintenance scheduling procedures, loaner procedures and invoicing requirements. 

 
Contracted maintenance facilities are expected to provide prompt, courteous and competent service to drivers. Garage staff 
must be knowledgeable about service procedures, and initiate the service transaction within 15 minutes of their arrival and/or 
service call is placed. It is important that the service desk is staffed adequately to provide efficient customer service in a 
timely manner. 

 
To assist the Contractor with the maintenance program, the City will provide: 

 
1. Listing of covered vehicles (Exhibit D) by work order number, updated as necessary. 

 
2. Repair orders and billing invoices must refer to the vehicles by their work order number. 

 
3. City preventative maintenance schedule (Schedule A) 

 
4. Designated staff contacts. 

 
A. Safety Check 

 

The Contractor shall perform a safety check in conjunction with all maintenance requirements listed within this 
Request for Proposal. These safety checks shall be performed every time a vehicle is brought in for service: 

 
Y Tires – Visually check condition. 
Y Lights – Check directional signaling devices and emergency light systems for proper operation. 
Y Seat belt – Check operation of seat belts 
Y Windshield Wipers and Washers – Check condition of wiper arms and blades. Check aim and flow of washer 

spray.  Fill washer reservoir with washer solvent. 
Y Fluid Levels – Check and replenish fluid levels in transmission, differential, steering sector or power steering 

pump, and master cylinder.  Inspect all units for leakage and clogging. 
Y Battery – Check condition of heat-shield, hold-down clamps and cable ends, top off electrolyte level, and clean 

top and terminals as necessary. 
Y Heater-Defroster-Air Conditioner System and Wiper Controls – Check switches, valves, and ducting doors for 

proper operation. 
Y Exhaust System – Visually inspect complete exhaust system including catalytic converter and heat-shielding. 

Check for broken, damaged, missing, or poorly positioned parts. Inspect for open seams, holes, or any 
condition which could allow exhaust fumes to enter the vehicle. 

Y Steering and Suspension Components – Conduct a “look and “shake” inspection. 
Y Frame/Sub-Frame and Cross Member – Visually check for “drive-over” and/or vehicular damage and fatiguing. 
Y Drive Shaft U-Joints / CV Joints – Conduct a “look” and “shake” inspection for seal leakage and joint failure. 
Y Critical Components – Check condition of all under-hood heat-shields, and the routing of all hoses and wiring to 

ensure maximum protection from radiated exhaust heat.  Inspect all coolant hoses, fuel line hoses, power 
steering hoses, engine accessory drive belts, and other under-hood plastic or rubber components. 

Y Brakes – Inspect all brake line hoses and master cylinder for signs of leaks or damage. Inspect front brake pads, 
rear brake linings, wheels cylinders, and parking brake cables and linkage. Report estimate of remaining life of 
pads and shoes. 

Y Starter/Charging System – Electronically check starter motor cranking speed and current draw. Check alternator 
charging rate. 

Y Cooling System – Visually inspect entire system for leaks, damage or others signs of needed repair. 



- 9 -  

B. Scheduling of Maintenance and Service Procedures 
 

1. City has designated the Fleet Supervisor as the Service Representative (SR). Although the garage will 
have contact with other City operations staff, the SR is your primary contact with the City. 

 
2. The contracted garage shall identify a single individual by name to serve as the responsible contact for 

daily communication with the City regarding vehicle scheduling and vehicle status update(s). 
 

3. The SR will contact the designated garage representative between 7:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., weekdays 
to determine the status of vehicles and/or equipment being serviced. The garage contact should 
provide accurate and timely information to the SR on vehicle status including but not limited to: 

 
- What vehicles/equipment is ready by vehicle number. 
- What vehicles/equipment is being serviced/require repair. 
- Estimated completion of vehicles/equipment under repair. 
- Description of repairs and costs. 

 
4. For other services, the vehicle driver will deliver the vehicle to your facility, and provide a description 

of problem of the vehicle. 
 

a. Contractor to shuttle driver back to work within 30 minutes. 
 

b. Contractor to contact SR for estimates and obtain authorization to proceed. For services 
estimated over $500, Contractor must obtain SR written approval via fax or e-mail. 

 
5. After the service is completed: 

 
a. Complete Vehicle Service Order ready for SR or designee to sign. 

 
b. Place service reminder label on the driver’s side windshield stating the next maintenance Mileage 

and Date for routine preventative maintenance. 
 

c. The vendor must maintain a data base of all city vehicles and send required maintenance reminders 
to the SR by email. 

 
d. Wash the exterior and vacuum the interior of vehicle. 

 
e. Contact SR to provide time that vehicle is ready for transporting back to the original location. If 

the SR is not available, leave a voicemail message. 
 

f. SR or designee will check work performed, sign off Service Order, and accept the keys 
from Contractor representative. 

 
6. When repairs cannot be accomplished at your facility or a subcontractor facility identified in the 

proposal, you must contact the SR for instructions. No repairs shall be made by non-authorized facilities 
without notification of the SR. 

 
7. The City asks that you report to the SR any vehicle brought in for service or specific concern with 

problems caused by driver misuse. 
 
 

8. The Contractor will be responsible for loss and damage to all City vehicles under its custody and/or control. 
 

9. The City may, at its sole option, purchase tires from contractor at the State of Washington Contract 
pricing or better. 

 
 
 
 
 



- 10 -  

 
C. Preventive Maintenance 

The City will provide a listing of vehicles due for preventive maintenance service at the beginning of each month. 
Vehicles will be listed by work order number, the type of preventative maintenance the vehicle is to receive, and the 
week the vehicle is due for service. City SR or designee will notify Contractor for specific dates vehicle will be 
ready for service. 

 
The preventative maintenance services will be in accordance with the preventative maintenance schedule (Schedule 
A). Additionally: 

 
1. If projected brake pad/shoe life is less than 1500 miles, replace brake pads/shoes. 

 
2. Tires will be checked and depth of tread will be indicated on work order. City will be responsible of tire 

replacement. 
 

3. Turn-around time of 24 hours for routine preventive maintenance is expected. 
 

4. When a prior appointment has been made for routing maintenance, the turnaround time should be four (4) 
hours. 

 
 
 

D. Non-Preventative Maintenance Service and Emergencies 
 

1. Non-routine maintenance, other than emergencies, will be handled by appointment through the SR or 
designee. If a driver stops at your facility Monday through Friday between 7:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
requesting service without prior notification to you from the City, call the SR/designee for instructions. 

 
2. After Contractor hours, if a vehicle has a breakdown or is involved in an accident and must be towed, the 

driver has been instructed to have the vehicle towed to your facility. The operator will then provide their 
own transportation. You may, therefore, encounter a disabled vehicle that has been towed to your facility 
during non-working hours.  In such a situation, notify the SR for instructions. 

 
3. There may be times when the SR calls early in the day with a specific set of instructions, and later in the 

day changes them; or, another staff member will call to change them if the SR is not available. The last set 
of instructions will prevail. 

 
4. Turn-around time of 24 hours for non-preventative maintenance service is expected unless otherwise 

approved by SR. 



- 11 -  

EXHIBIT C 
PROPOSA
L FORMS 

 
 

I. MANAGEMENT INFORMATION 
 

Proposers and their subcontractors must have prior successful experience performing maintenance 
and repair services on automobiles, must be licensed to conduct business in the State of Washington, 
and must possess all permits, licenses, certifications, approvals, equipment, materials, and staff 
necessary to perform and/or carry out the requirements of the contract. 

 
1. SHOP PROFILE RESPONSIBILITY 

SHOP NAME:    NAME OF SHOP 

OWNER(S)      SHOP ADDRESS: 

    PHONE NUMBER:  

    FAX NUMBER:  

     NUMBER OF YEARS 

IN BUSINESS:   

NUMBER OF YEARS IN BUSINESS AT THIS LOCATION:    
 

2. PROXIMITY TO CITY HALL  MILES. 
 

3. NAME OF SHOP MANAGER(S):    State the duties and 
qualifications of shop manager(s) 

 
 
 

4. ASSIGNED CONTACT/SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE: 

Name:   Title/Duties:   

Qualifications:   Years with Contractor:    

Phone Numbers: Work:  Pager:    
 

5. Emergency Contact (365 days/year; 24 hours):    
 

6. Operating Hours – The Contractor shall be currently operating out of a commercial facility, which is 
open and accessible to City personnel, without prior notice during normal business hours. Facilities 
shall be available for vehicle service between the hours of 8:00am and 5:00pm, Monday through 
Friday (excluding holidays). Please state hours that your facility is open for maintenance service. 

 

Monday    a.m. to    p.m. 
Tuesday    a.m. to    p.m. 
Wednesday    a.m. to    p.m. 
Thursday    a.m. to    p.m. 
Friday    a.m. to    p.m. 
Saturday    a.m. to    p.m. 
Sunday    a.m. to    p.m. 

 
 

 
 

7. Please provide an experience/qualification profile for each member of your technical staff to include 
the 

following information.  Attach additional sheets if needed. 



- 12 -  

 
 
 
 
 

 
Name Job Title/Years in Job 

Years with 
Contractor 

Job-Related Training/ 
Cert./Date 

 
 

8. Given the size and composition of your current staffing, will it be necessary for you to increase staffing to meet 
the requirements of this contract? (Explain) 

 
 
 
 
 

9. Please describe your hiring and continued education/training requirements for mechanics? 



- 13 -  

II. REFERENCES 
 

1. Describe your shop’s experience providing vehicle maintenance services including the number of years in 
business, and type of services provided. 

 
 
 
 

2. Please provide 3 commercial client references, their size of fleet by vehicle type, years of contract relation, 
type and frequency of the service provided. Please identify the contact person and phone number for each. 
Use additional sheets if necessary. 

 
Company Name       
Company Address      
Company Phone       
Contact Person      
Fleet Size/Type       
Years of Contract    
Frequency of Service      

 

Company Name       
Company Address      
Company Phone       
Contact Person      
Fleet Size/Type       
Years of Contract    
Frequency of Service      

 

Company Name       
Company Address      
Company Phone       
Contact Person      
Fleet Size/Type       
Years of Contract    
Frequency of Service      

 
 

3. Approximately what percent of your shop work is currently derived from fleet business?  % 
 

4. Has your shop ever been a subject of Better Business Bureau action? Yes No 
Describe: 

 
 

5. Are you currently or have you ever previously contracted with a municipality to provide vehicle 
maintenance service?       Yes      No 
Describe: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. Are you currently or have you ever previously provided repair services to other government entities? 
Yes      No 
If yes, please list the entity names, contract person and phone number: 

 
 

7. Briefly describe your interest in servicing the City’s fleet and what factors make you the best candidate in 



- 14 -  

your opinion. (Include here any information or materials that you want the City to take into consideration 
while evaluating your ability to perform this contract.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8. The City reserves the right to perform unannounced site visits, interview staff and management, and test 
repairs prior to selection to determine, among other things: 
- the customer service responsiveness 
- the shop organization and operation efficiency 
- the response time 



- 15 -  

III. SUPPLEMENTAL QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

1. City drivers are usually in a hurry and need to return to work. Their expectation is to be acknowledged and 
served promptly, courteously and competently.  How will you do this? 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2. What procedures are followed to ensure successful completion of service work prior to the vehicle being 
released to the customer? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. City requires the Contractor to designate one person from the shop to work with the City representatives 
and communicate vehicle repair status and scheduling on a routine basis. Please identify this position and 
the qualifications you will establish for this position. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. The City expects 24 hours turnaround time for preventive and for routine repair services. Can you meet this 
standard and provide quality repair work?   Yes [   ]   No [  ] 

 
 
 
 

5. Please specify whether OEM or after-market parts will be used for repairs? If after-market parts will be 
used, please explain under what circumstance(s). Please be aware the City requires use of OEM parts for 
all services unless specifying herein or otherwise approved by SR prior to repair for all services. 

 
 
 
 

6. List days and hours of shop operations and after-hour emergency services availability. 
 
 
 
 
 

7. Describe the availability of secured parking for vehicles in for repairs. 



- 16 -  

IV. FACILITY DESCRIPTION 
 

1. How many bays are available for vehicles? 
 
 

2. Indicate the number and type of vehicle lifts in the shop. 
Describe the diagnostic and service equipment currently used. List equipment by function, make, model and 
year. 

 
Equipment/Function Make Model Age 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Describe what provisions and procedures you have in place to dispose of hazardous substances, oils, coolants, 
etc. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Do you have a certified emissions specialist on staff? Yes No 
 
 
 
 
 

5. Do you have an electrical systems specialist on staff? Yes No 
 
 

6. Describe any experience that you have in servicing/maintaining lift-equipped vehicles. 
 
 
 
 

7. The City requires the Contractor to coordinate warranty work. Please describe how you would perform that and 
which dealership/service departments you will use for Chevrolet, Ford, GMC, and Dodge. Please provide name 
of dealership, shop location and phone number. 

 
 

8. With each service, vehicle washing and interior vacuuming is expected. Can you provide this performance 
standard or specialized service? Yes No 

 
 

9. Can you perform emergency roadside service as required? Yes No 



- 17 -  

V. SUBCONTRACTORS 
 

Proposers unable to perform all services listed herein may subcontract out those services outside of their 
expertise. However, the successful proposer responding to the solicitation shall be considered the primary 
Contractor, and therefore responsible for all services rendered. Proposals must include names and addresses 
of all subcontractors to be used in conjunction with the contract. 

 
Indicate what work is proposed to be performed by subcontractor(s). Indicate on the following list the name and 
location of all subcontractor(s). 

 

Service  Sub-contractor 
(Name/Location) 

Primary Contact Phone 

ENGINE WORK 

--Minor Work 
   

--Major Rebuild/Repair 
   

ELECTRICAL 

DRIVABILITY 

--Tune Up 
   

--Fuel System 
   

--Ignition System 
   

--Coolant System 
   

HEATING/AIR 
CONDITIONING 

   

POWER 
TRANSMISSION 

 
CHASSIS 

--Steering 
   

--Suspension 
   

--Tires 
   

--Wheels 
   

BRAKES 
   

BODY REPAIR 

OTHER 
 
 

   

 
 

   



- 18 -  

All repair parts are to be OEM or equivalent. Exceptions will be individually considered on a case by case basis. Price 
for each service shall include parts, labor and all necessary fluids and free fluid top off between service intervals. 
Interior vacuum and exterior wash and service reminder sticker are required with each service. 

 
Proposers must state the UNIT PRICE separately for each item and extend the total. Unit prices shall include all 
packing charges. Unit prices will be used as a basis for awards when an error in extending total amounts occurs. 
Proposers who restrict offers to the basis of “Lots” or “All or None” must clearly indicate such restriction in writing 
in the offer. 

 
The City is required to pay Washington State Sales or Use Taxes for most goods and services.  The City is exempt 
from Federal Excise and transportation taxes. Taxes shall NOT be included in the bid prices. Applicable taxes will be 
added as a separate item. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMPANY DELIVERY DAYS AFTER 
GUARANTEED ORDER 

ADDRESS PROMPT PAYMENT DISCOUNT TERMS: 

CITY STATE ZIP CODE PHONE 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE ( Print ) TITLE SIGNATURE 

Proposals signed by an agent are to be accompanied by evidence of their authority. 



- 19 -  

COST AND CONDITIONS 
 

 
 
 
 

Services/Costs 

Passenger Veh & 
Light Trucks 

(gasoline) 

4x4 Trucks and 
Utility Vehicles 

(diesel) 

Police Patrol 
Vehicles 
(gasoline) 

Labor 
Hr 

Material 
Cost 

Labor 
Hr 

Material 
Cost 

Labor 
Hr 

Material 
Cost 

Scheduled Preventive Maintenance: 

Service A: 4 months or 4000 miles Service       
Service B: 8 months or 8000 miles Service       
Service C: 12 months or 12000 miles Service       

 
 

Cost of Hourly Labor Rate (not included in Service A,B,C) 
 

$ 
--------- 

- 
 

$ 
--------- 
- 

 
$ 

--------- 
- 

Replacement Dealer Parts (not included in Service A,B,C) --------- % --------- % ------- % 
 

Replacement None Dealer Parts (not included in Service A,B,C) 
--------- 

- 
 

% 
--------- 

- 
 

% 
------- 

- 
 

% 
       

 

Conditions: 

1. Prices for the services listed above must include all labor and material needed to complete the services specified. 

2. Prices proposed in this section are firm fixed prices for the initial period of the contract (two years). 

3. All repair parts are to be OEM or equivalent. Exceptions will be individually considered on a case- by-case basis. 
Price for each service shall include parts, labor and all necessary fluids and free fluid top off between service intervals. 

4. For police patrol vehicles, all parts are to be OEM. Heavy Duty Police Pursuit Vehicles parts. 

5. Interior vacuum and exterior wash and service reminder sticker are required with each service. 

6. Provide break down of labor hours for each periodic repair item and indicate any exceptions, if applicable. Labor 
hours shall be repair time, not factory time. 

7. Unless otherwise specified and/or agreed to, a standard 120-day or 4000 mile warranty will be required on all labor 
and materials. 



- 20 -  

Exhibit D 
 

City of Orting Police Department 
Vehicles 

 
 
 

Vehicle Year Yrs old Replace Mileage Miles/Yr 
Charger 2008 7 2020 75,677 10,811 
Charger 2008 7 2020 90,689 12,956 
Tahoe 2007 8 2021 57,678 7,210 

Charger 2008 7 2020 30,267 4,324 
Charger 2008 7 2020 62,963 8,995 

Crown Vic 2006 9 2018 83,770 9,308 
Explorer 2006 9 2018 58,563 6,507 

Crown Vic 2006 9 2018 91,546 10,172 
Crown Vic 2004 11 2016 135,452 12,314 
Explorer 2005 10 2017 83,006 8,301 
Explorer 2016     
Explorer 2016     

 
Public Works Vehicles 

Vehicle Year Age Replace  Mileage Miles/Yr 
Chev PU 2500 2000 15 2015 152,253 10,150 
Chev PU 1500 2000 15 2016 72,710 4,847 
Chev PU 1500 1992 23 2007 109,627 4,766 
Chev Small Dump Truck 1993 22 2016 629,515 28,614 
Dodge PU - Small #2 1998 17 2016 58,013 3,413 
Dodge PU - Small #1 1998 17 2016 90,568 5,328 
Ford Flat bed PU 1996 19 2016 100,599 5,295 
Ford PU 150 2004 11 2019 4,063 369 
Ford Bucket Truck 1994 21 2016 118,111 5,624 
Ford Large Dump Truck 2006 9 2021 10,523 1,169 
Ford Crane Truck 2007 8 2022 20,198 2,525 
Chev Van 1999 16 2016 69,333 4,333 
Ford PU 150 2009 6 2024 45,780 7,630 
Ford PU 150 2013 2 2028 11,832 5,916 
Ford Escape 2008 7 2023 28,100 4,014 
Averages    14   101,415   
Hourly Vehicles       Hrs Hrs/Yr 
Street Sweeper 2012 3 2025 7,604 2535 
Case Backhoe 1993 22 2018 5,494 250 
Gator 2005 10 2020 2,011 201 
Gator  2013 2 2028 578 289 
Gator 2014 1 2029 362 362 
Small Backhoe 2016         



- 21 -  

Exhibit E 

EXAMPLE CONTRACT – FOR REVIEW ONLY 

MAINTENANCE/LABOR AGREEMENT 
FOR 

FLEET MAINTENANCE 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into in duplicate this  day of  , 20  by and 
between the CITY OF ORTING, a Washington municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "CITY" and 
  , hereinafter referred to as the "CONTRACTOR." 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to have certain work, services and/or tasks performed as set forth below requiring specialized 
skills and other supportive capabilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR represents that the CONTRACTOR is qualified and possesses sufficient skills and the 
necessary capabilities, including technical and professional expertise, where required, to perform the work, services and/or 
tasks set forth in this Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants, and performance contained herein, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 

 
1. SCOPE OF WORK. 

 
The CONTRACTOR shall perform such work and accomplish such tasks, including the furnishing of all materials and 
equipment necessary for full performance thereof, as are identified and designated as CONTRACTOR responsibilities 
throughout this Agreement and as detailed in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein (the "Project"). 

 
2. TERM. 

 
The Project shall begin no earlier than TBD, and shall be completed no later than TBD, unless sooner extended or 
terminated according to the provisions herein. 

 
3. COMPENSATION AND METHOD OF PAYMENT. 

 
A. Payments for work provided hereunder shall be made following the performance of such work, unless otherwise 

permitted by law and approved in writing by the CITY. 
 

B. No payment shall be made for any work rendered by the CONTRACTOR except for work identified and set forth in 
this Agreement. 

 
C. The CITY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for work performed under this Agreement pursuant to accepted bid proposal 

attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and by this reference incorporated herein. 
 

D. The CONTRACTOR shall submit to the City Treasurer on forms approved by the City Treasurer, a voucher or 
invoice for services rendered during the pay period. The CITY shall initiate authorization for payment after receipt of 
said approved voucher or invoice and shall make payment to the CONTRACTOR within approximately thirty (30) 
days thereafter. 

 
4. REPORTS AND INSPECTIONS. 

 
A. The CONTRACTOR at such times and in such forms as the CITY may require, shall furnish to the CITY such 

statements, records, reports, data, and information as the CITY may request pertaining to matters covered by this 
Agreement. All of the reports, information data, and other related materials, prepared or assembled by the 
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement and any information relating to personal, medical and financial data will be 



- 22 -  

treated as confidential insofar as is allowed by Washington State laws regarding disclosure of public information, 
Chapter 42.17, R.C.W. Generally, Chapter 42.17, R.C.W. requires disclosure of all but the most personal and sensitive 
information in CITY hands. 

 
B. The CONTRACTOR shall at any time during normal business hours and as often as the CITY or State Examiner may 

deem necessary, make available for examination all of its records and data with respect to all matters covered, directly 
or indirectly, by this Agreement and shall permit the CITY or its designated authorized representative to audit and 
inspect other data relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. The CITY shall receive a copy of all audit reports 
made by the agency or firm as to the CONTRACTOR’S activities. The CITY may, at its discretion, conduct an audit at 
its expense, using its own or outside auditors, of the CONTRACTOR’S activities which relate, directly or indirectly, to 
this Agreement. 

 
5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP. 

 
A. The parties intend that an independent CONTRACTOR/CITY relationship will be created by this Agreement. The 

CITY is interested primarily in the results to be achieved; subject to paragraphs herein, the implementation of work 
and/or services will lie solely with the discretion of the CONTRACTOR. No agent, employee, servant or representative 
of the CONTRACTOR shall be deemed to be an employee, agent, servant or representative of the CITY for any 
purpose, and the employees of the CONTRACTOR are not entitled to any of the benefits the CITY provides for its 
employees. The CONTRACTOR will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, 
employees, servants, subcontractors or representatives during the performance of this Agreement. 

 
B. In the performance of the work herein contemplated the CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor with the 

authority to control and direct the performance of the details of the work, however, the results of the work contemplated 
herein must meet the approval of the CITY and shall be subject to the CITY’S general rights of inspection and review 
to secure the satisfactory completion thereof. 

 
6. CONTRACTOR   EMPLOYEES/AGENTS 

 
The CITY may in its sole discretion require the CONTRACTOR to remove an employee(s), agent(s) or servant(s) from 
employment on this Project. The CONTRACTOR may however employ that (those) individual(s) on other non-CITY 
related projects. 

 
7. HOLD HARMLESS INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
A. The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold the CITY and its agents, employees, and/or officers, harmless from and 

shall process and defend at its own expense any and all claims, demands, suits, at law or equity, actions, penalties, 
losses, damages, or costs, of whatsoever kind or nature, brought against the CITY arising out of, in connection with, or 
incident to the execution of this Agreement and/or the CONTRACTOR’S performance or failure to perform any aspect 
of this Agreement; provided, however, that if such claims are caused by or result from the concurrent negligence of the 
CITY, its agents, employees, and/or officers, this indemnity provision shall be valid and enforceable only to the extent 
of the negligence of the CONTRACTOR; and provided further, that nothing herein shall require the CONTRACTOR 
to hold harmless or defend the CITY, its agents, employees and/or officers from any claims arising from the sole 
negligence of the CITY, its agents, employees, and/or officers. The CONTRACTOR expressly agrees that the 
indemnification provided herein constitutes the CONTRACTOR’S waiver of immunity under Title 51 RCW, for the 
purposes of this Agreement. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties. The provisions of this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
B. No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement except as expressly provided herein. 

 
8. INSURANCE. 

 
The CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to 
persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the 
CONTRACTOR, their agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. 

 
The CONTRACTOR shall provide a Certificate of Insurance evidencing: 



- 23 -  

A. Automobile Liability insurance with limits no less than $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury 
and property damage. 

B. Commercial General Liability insurance written on an occurrence basis with limits no less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limit per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate for personal injury, bodily injury and property damage. 

 
C. Garage Liability insurance with combined single limits of liability not less than $3,000,000 for bodily injury, including 

personal injury or death, and property damage. 
 

D. Garage Keepers Legal Liability insurance of $20,000 time’s maximum vehicle capacity. 
 

The CITY shall be named as an additional insured on the insurance policy, as respects work performed by or on behalf of 
the CONTRACTOR and a copy of the endorsement naming the CITY as additional insured shall be attached to the 
Certificate of Insurance. The CITY reserves the right to request certified copies of any required policies. 

 
The CONTRACTOR’S insurance shall contain a clause stating that coverage shall apply separately to each insured against 

whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respects to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 
 

Any payment of deductible or self-insured retention shall be the sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 
 

The CONTRACTOR’S insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the CITY and the CITY shall be given thirty (30) 
days prior written notice of any cancellation, suspension or material change in coverage. 

 
9. TREATMENT OF ASSETS. 

 
Title to all property furnished by the CITY shall remain in the name of the CITY and the CITY shall become the owner of 
the work product and other documents, if any, prepared by the CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. 

 
A. The CONTRACTOR, in the performance of this Agreement, shall comply with all applicable federal, state or local 

laws and ordinances, including regulations for licensing, certification and operation of facilities, programs and 
accreditation, and licensing of individuals, and any other standards or criteria as described in this Agreement to assure 
quality of services. 

 
B. The CONTRACTOR shall fully satisfy, and shall require any subcontractors to fully satisfy, any obligation to make 

industrial insurance premium payments related to the Project and required under RCW 51.12.050 and/or RCW 
51.12.070. Specified retainage relating to the Project will be withheld until receipt by the City of evidence that 
CONTRACTOR and all of its subcontractors have fully satisfied any obligation to make industrial insurance premium 
payments related to the Project and required under RCW 51.12.050 and/or RCW 51.12.070. 

 
11. NONDISCRIMINATION. 

 
A. The CITY is an equal opportunity employer. 

 
B. Nondiscrimination in Employment. In the performance of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR will not discriminate 

against any employee or applicant for employment on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital 
status, age or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap; provided that the prohibition against 
discrimination in employment because of handicap shall not apply if the particular disability prevents the proper 
performance of the particular worker involved. The CONTRACTOR shall ensure that applicants are employed, and that 
employees are treated during employment without discrimination because of their race, creed, color, national origin, 
sex, marital status, age or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap. Such action shall include, but not 
be limited to: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfers, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or 
termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and programs for training including apprenticeships. The 
CONTRACTOR shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as may be required to ensure full compliance 
with local, state and federal laws prohibiting discrimination in employment. 

 
C. Nondiscrimination in Services. The CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against any recipient of any services or 

benefits provided for in this Agreement on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, age 



- 24 -  

or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap. 
 

D. The contractor represents and warrants that it is in compliance with and agrees that it will remain in compliance with 
the provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, including but not limited to the provisions of the 
Act prohibiting the hiring and continued employment of unauthorized aliens and requiring verification and record 
keeping with respect to the status of each of its employees’ eligibility for employment. The contractor shall include a 
provision substantially the same as this section in any and all contracts with subcontractors performing work required 
of the contractor under this contract. The contractor agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any and all 
liability, including liability for interest and penalties, the City may incur as a result of the contractor failing to comply 
with any provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.   Contractor understands and agrees that if 
it violates this section, this Agreement may be terminated by the City, and that Contractor shall be barred from 
performing any services for the City in the future unless and until a showing is made satisfactory to the City that 
discriminatory practices have terminated and that recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

 
12. ASSIGNMENT/SUBCONTRACTING. 

 
A. The CONTRACTOR shall not assign its performance under this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement without 

the written consent of the CITY, and it is further agreed that said consent must be sought in writing by the 
CONTRACTOR not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of any proposed assignment. The CITY reserves the 
right to reject without cause any such assignment. 

 
B. Any work or services assigned hereunder shall be subject to each provision of this Agreement and proper bidding 

procedures where applicable as set forth in local, state and/or federal statutes, ordinances and guidelines. 
 

C. Any technical/professional service subcontract not listed in this Agreement, must have express advance approval by 
the CITY. 

 
13. CHANGES. 

 
Either party may request changes to the scope of services and performance to be provided hereunder, however, no change or 
addition to this Agreement shall be valid or binding upon the CITY unless such change or addition be in writing and signed 
by both parties. Such amendments shall be attached to and made part of this Agreement. 

 
The CITY will have the right to make changes to the work provided for hereunder, within its general scope, and the contract 
time and for contract amount will be equitably adjusted to reflect the change.  The CONTRACTOR will promptly 
commence and continue to perform the work as changed not withstanding disagreement over the equitable adjustment 
owing therefore. 

 
14. MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS. 

 
A. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain books, records and documents, which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct 

and indirect costs related to the performance of this Agreement and shall maintain such accounting procedures and 
practices as may be necessary to assure proper accounting of all funds paid pursuant to this Agreement. These records 
shall be subject at all reasonable times to inspection, review, or audit, by the CITY, its authorized representative, the 
State Auditor, or other governmental officials authorized by law to monitor this Agreement. 

 
B. The CONTRACTOR shall retain all books, records, documents and other material relevant to this agreement, for six 

(6) years after its expiration. The CONTRACTOR agrees that the CITY or its designee shall have full access and right 
to examine any of said materials at all reasonable times during said period. 

 
15. POLITICAL ACTIVITY PROHIBITED. 

 
None of the funds, materials, property or services provided directly or indirectly under tile Agreement shall be used for any 
partisan political activity, or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office. 

 
16. PROHIBITED INTEREST. 

 
No member, officer, or employee of the CITY shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds 



- 25 -  

thereof 
 

17. RETAINAGE. 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in accordance with Ch. 60.28 RCW, the CITY shall retain from the 
monies earned by CONTRACTOR hereunder, five percent as a trust fund for the protection and payment of any person or 
persons, mechanic, subcontractor or materialman who shall perform any labor or furnish any supplies related to the Project, 
and the state with respect to taxes imposed pursuant to Title 82 RCW which may be due from CONTRACTOR. Said 
retainage shall be reserved in a CITY fund until thirty days following final acceptance of the Project as completed, and shall 
not be released to CONTRACTOR until the CITY has received certification from the Washington State Department of 
Revenue that all taxes, increases and penalties due from CONTRACTOR, and all taxes due and to become due with respect 
to the Project, have been paid in full or are readily collectible without recourse to the state’s lien on the retainage, and until 
the requirements of section 10(C) have been satisfied. 

 
18. PERFORMANCE BOND. 

 
In accordance with Ch. 39.08 RCW, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to the CITY a bond, with a surety company licensed as a 
surety in Washington as surety, conditioned that CONTRACTOR shall faithfully perform all provisions of this Agreement 
and pay all laborers, mechanics, subcontractors and material men, and all persons who supply such person or persons, or 
subcontractors, with provisions and supplies for carrying out the Project. Said bond shall be in the amount of the total 
amount of this Agreement. In lieu of a bond for contracts less than $20,000, at the option of the contractor, the CITY may 
retain 50% of the contract amount for 30 days after final acceptance and/or all liens are cleared and all necessary releases 
are received from the Department of Revenue. 

 
19. TERMINATION. 

 
A. Termination for Convenience. The CITY may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time, by written 

notice to the CONTRACTOR. In the event of termination for the convenience of the CITY, the CONTRACTOR shall 
be paid its costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. The 
CONTRACTOR shall promptly submit a termination claim to the CITY. If the CONTRACTOR has any property in its 
possession belonging to the CITY, the CONTRACTOR will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner 
directed by the CITY. 

 
B. Termination for Cause. If the CONTRACTOR fails to perform in the manner called for in this Agreement, or if the 

CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such noncompliance 
within five (5) days written notice thereof, the CITY may terminate this Agreement for cause. Termination shall be 
effected by serving a notice of termination on the CONTRACTOR setting forth the manner in which the 
CONTRACTOR is in default. The CONTRACTOR will only be paid for services performed in accordance with the 
manner of performance set forth in this Agreement. 

 
201. NOTICE. 

 
Notice provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses designated for the parties on the last 
page of this Agreement. 

 
21.  ATTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS. 

 
If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or because of a dispute, 
breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall 
be entitled to recover from the other party, in addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled, reasonable 
attorney's fees and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding. 

 
223. JURISDICTION AND VENUE. 

 
A. This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered with the State of Washington and 

it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington, both as to 
interpretation and performance. 



- 26 -  

B. Any action of law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of this Agreement or any provisions 
thereof shall be instituted and maintained only in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction in Pierce County, 
Washington. 

 
24. SEVERABILITY. 

 
A. If, for any reason, any part, term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of the United States to be illegal, 

void or unenforceable, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of 
the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be 
invalid. 

 
B. If it should appear that any provision hereof is in conflict with any statutory provision of the State of Washington, said 

provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be in conflict 
therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform to such statutory provisions. 

 
25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

 
The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto and any oral representations or 
understandings not incorporated herein are excluded. Further, any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and 
signed by both parties. Failure to comply with any of the provisions stated herein shall constitute material breach of contract 
and cause for termination both parties recognize time is of the essence in the performance of the provisions of this 
Agreement. It is also agreed by the parties that the forgiveness of the nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement 
does not constitute a waiver of the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and year first hereinabove 
written. 

 
 

CITY OF ORTING CONTRACTOR:  __________________________   ___________________ 
        Signature   Date 

___________________________________ 
        Joachim Pestinger, Mayor 
 
Date:    

 
EXHIBIT “A” - Project Work 


	Council Agenda 11-18-15 (Special Meeting)
	Council Minutes 10-28-15
	ConsentAgenda111815
	AB15-10
	Agenda Bill No. 15-10, Assuming TBD
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Ordinance No  2015-972 TBD_REVISEDbyMark
	ORDINANCE NO. 2015-972

	Resolution No. 2015-12, assumption of TBD_Redacted
	Legal Publication _ Resolution No. 2015-12, Assumption of TBD

	AB15-11
	Agenda Bill No. 15-11, PH-2016 Proposed Budget
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Budget Changes for Draft 2
	budget BW for web

	AB15-12
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	AB15-13
	Agenda Bill No. 15-13, PH-2016 Property Tax Levy
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Resolution No  2015-13, 2016 Property Tax Levy
	CITY OF ORTING
	WASHINGTON
	RESOLUTION NO. 2015-13
	CITY OF ORTING
	ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:


	AB15-14
	Agenda Bill No. 15-14, PH-2016 Utility Rate Changes
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Ordinance No. 2015-973 2016 Utility Rate Adjustment
	ORDINANCE NO. 2015-973

	2016Rates

	AB15-15
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	AB15-16
	Agenda Bill No. 15-16, AWC Leg Goals
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	AWC2016LegislativePriorities
	Legislative Prioities 11.13..2015

	AB15-17
	Agenda Bill No. 15-17, Cemetery Fees
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Resolution  No  2015-14 cemetery fees
	CITY OF ORTING
	WASHINGTON
	RESOLUTION NO. 2015-14
	CITY OF ORTING
	ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:
	Rachel Pitzel, City Clerk


	AB15-18
	Agenda Bill No  15-18 Wetland Mitigation Plan_Calistoga Setback Levee
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	LeveeWetlands3
	Scope of Work
	City of Orting

	PHASE 5001 – calistoga setback levee wetland mitigation plan revisions and pierce county coordination
	Task 1 – Project Management and Administration
	Objectives
	Deliverables
	Assumptions

	Task 2 – Mitigation Plan Revisions
	Objectives
	Approach
	Deliverables
	Assumptions

	Task 3 – Pierce County Coordination
	Objectives
	Approach
	Deliverables
	Assumptions

	Task 4 – Post High Water Event Evaluation
	Objectives
	Approach
	Deliverables
	Assumptions




	AB15-19
	Agenda Bill No. 15-20, Fleet Maintenance Services
	City Clerk, Rachel Pitzel
	Public Works, Dean Kaelin

	Vehicle Fleet RFP
	REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
	II. TIME SCHEDULE.
	III. INSTRUCTIONS TO CONTRACTORS.
	V. SCOPE OF SERVICES.
	VI. TERMS AND CONDITIONS.
	VII. COMPENSATION
	VIII. RFP CONTENTS AND ATTACHMENTS Page
	EXHIBIT A SCOPE OF SERVICE
	A. Preventative Maintenance
	B. Repairs and Maintenance
	C. Transport of Vehicles for Service
	D. Conditions on Required Services
	E. Repair Order Content and Procedure
	F. Hours of Operation
	Schedule A: Preventive Maintenance Schedule
	EXHIBIT B
	A. Safety Check
	B. Scheduling of Maintenance and Service Procedures
	C. Preventive Maintenance
	D. Non-Preventative Maintenance Service and Emergencies
	EXHIBIT C PROPOSAL FORMS
	II. REFERENCES
	III. SUPPLEMENTAL QUESTIONNAIRE
	IV. FACILITY DESCRIPTION
	V. SUBCONTRACTORS
	All repair parts are to be OEM or equivalent. Exceptions will be individually considered on a case by case basis. Price for each service shall include parts, labor and all necessary fluids and free fluid top off between service intervals.
	Exhibit D
	Public Works Vehicles
	Exhibit E






